
 

 

CITY OF ROCHESTER 

NOTICE of PUBLIC MEETING: 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 

Meeting Information 

Date:  March 14, 2017 
Time:  7:00 P.M. 
Location: City Council Chambers 
  31 Wakefield Street 
  Rochester, New Hampshire 
Agenda 

1. Call to Order 

2. Public Input 

3. Unfinished Business 

3.1 Attraction Signage on Spaulding Turnpike (page 2) 

3.2 Official Announcements & Posting Policy (page 4) 

4. New Business 

4.1 Water & Sewer Billing Process (referred from Utility Advisory Board) 

(page 7) 

4.2 Police Department Overtime (page 8) 

4.3 Capital Projects/Bonding (page 9) 

4.4 Fireworks Discussion (page 10) 

5. Reports from Deputy City Manager/ Director of Finance & Administration 

5.1 Chief Assessor Position (page 12) 

5.2 Chief Information Officer Position (page 14) 

5.3 Information Technology Capital Upgrades (page 18) 

5.4 City Prosecutor/ Deputy City Attorney ((page 20) 

5.5 Non-Union Wage Ranges Adjustment (page 28) 

5.6 Auditor Contract Extension (page 29) 

6. Monthly Financial Statements (page 30) 

7. Other 

8. Adjournment 



FINANCE COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item 
 
 
 

Agenda Item Name:  ATTRACTION SIGNAGE ON SPAULDING TURNPIKE 

Date Submitted:     October 14, 2016 

Name of Person Submitting Item:     Economic Development Manager Pollard 

E-mail Address:     karen.pollard@rochesternh.net 

Meeting Date Requested:     December 13, 2016 

Issue Summary Statement:     In 2015 the NH State Legislature added ATTRACTION SIGNS 

to the list of allowable tourist signs on divided, limited access highways such as the Spaulding 

Turnpike for all locations “South of Concord.” Rochester is considered south of Concord by DOT 

for the purposes of Attraction Signs. While the legislature now allows the signs, there is no budget 

to have the blue base signs installed. In order to address this issue and to have Attraction Signs 

installed on the Rochester, NH exits of the Spaulding Turnpike, the City of Rochester has been 

asked to step in and investigate alternatives that would allow the Rochester Fairgrounds, Opera 

House, Great Bay Community College and many others the opportunity for highway signage. The 

Finance Committee discussed this issue with Economic Development Manager Pollard on 

December 13, 2016 (Dec 13, 2016 Fin Com Mtg Minutes). Ms. Pollard has provided an update on 

the enclosed letter. 

Recommended Action:  Provide feedback on which entity the City would select 

for each exit so that the application process can be initiated. 

2

http://www.rochesternh.net/sites/rochesternh/files/minutes/finance_committee_meeting_minutes_of_2016-12-13.pdf


 

City of Rochester, New Hampshire 
Economic & Community Development  
151 Wakefield Street, Rochester NH 03867 

(603) 335-7522 www.thinkrochester.biz  
 

 

Date:  March 7, 2017 
 
To:  Finance Committee 

Blaine Cox, Deputy City Manager 
 
From:  Karen Pollard, Economic Development Manager  
 
Re:  NHDOT Highway Attraction Signs     
 
 

 

NHDOT has met twice regarding the blue Highway Attraction Signs and is able to give us a price 
estimate for installing the signs once we can supply them with additional information. They are 
requesting:  
 

1. A single organization or entity that will be the City’s designee on each sign. This represents 
the logo that will appear on the sign and will be used to “depreciate” the investment. All 
other logos that appear on the sign will be managed by NHDOT.   

2. A completed sign application for one organization for each sign. Each application will be 
used to initiate a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), so there will be a total of 5 
agreements. 

 
NHDOT suggested that each entity or organization be as close to the exit as is reasonable, and that it 
be on the main corridor to avoid the applications being denied for lack of trailblazing.  
 
Please review the following suggestions:  
Exit 12: Rochester Ice Arena 
Exit 13: Rochester Fairgrounds 
Exit 14: Ten Rod Road Business Park 
Exit 15: Granite Ridge District   
Exit 16: Great Bay Community College 
 
Due to a scheduling conflict, I’ve asked Blaine to collect your feedback on which entity you choose 
for each exit so that I may begin the application process. When the individual applications are 
approved, an installation cost will be assigned and the city will have accurate data available for 
discussion prior to approval of the MOU.     

3

http://www.thinkrochester.biz/


FINANCE COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item 
 
 
 

Agenda Item Name:     OFFICIAL ANNOUNCEMENTS & POSTING POLICY 

Date Submitted:     Held in Committee from December 13, 2016 

Name of Person Submitting Item:     Deputy City Manager Cox 

E-mail Address:     blaine.cox@rochesternh.net 

Meeting Date Requested:     January 10, 2017 

Issue Summary Statement:      

Mayor McCarley requested a draft policy pertaining to the posting of meetings, content of 

postings, location of postings, etc. 

A draft policy is attached for review. 

 

 

Recommended Action:     None. 

4



 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MEMO NO.  
DATE:  

SUBJECT:   
  
  CITY MANAGER 

 

 

 
 
 
 
             1 
   

I. STATEMENT: 
 This policy is intended to provide City personnel with guidance regarding 

announcements, postings and others information for public dissemination 
related to the meetings and other work of City boards, commissions and 
committees. The City seeks to fully meet requirements of open government 
(in accordance with RSA 91-A) as well as the desire of the City Council for 
the City to operate in the most transparent manner as practicable. To these 
ends, please familiarize yourself with the City’s Administrative Procedure 
regarding the Right to Know statute and follow the steps below. 

 
II. PROCEDURE 

1. The package of materials for meetings of the Council and Council 
subcommittees will be completed and distributed no less than 5 calendar 
days prior to the specified meeting date. 

2. The public postings notifying the public of meetings of the Council and 
Council subcommittees will be posted in “hard copy” in at least two 
separate public locations as well as on the City’s website. A “public 
location” is defined as a location accessible to the general public at all hours. 
Unless otherwise stipulated by the Committee Chair, the two public 
locations shall be exterior locations at City Hall and the Rochester Public 
Library. 

3. The public postings notifying the public of meetings of the Council and 
Council subcommittees will contain the following specifics regarding said 
meeting: 
3.1 Date 
3.2 Time 
3.3 Location 
3.4 Tentative Agenda 
3.5 Proper Statutory Citations of any Non-Public Sessions, when applicable 

4. Statutorily required Public Hearings will be posted according to the 
requirements of relevant state statutes, including newspaper Public Notices. 
Public Hearing Notices are to be drafted in a manner that clearly states the 
purpose of said hearing. 

5. It is recognized that all meetings of the Council and Council subcommittees 
are “meetings to be held in public” and not “public meetings.” Therefore, an 

5



 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MEMO NO.  
DATE:  

SUBJECT:   
  
  CITY MANAGER 

 

 

 
 
 
 
             2 
   

agenda item allowing “public input” will be at the discretion of the 
committee chair. 

6



FINANCE COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item 
 
 
 

Agenda Item Name:     WATER & SEWR BILLING PROCESS 

Date Submitted:     January 11, 2017 

Name of Person Submitting Item:     Utility Advisory Board 

E-mail Address:     Utility Advisory Board 

Meeting Date Requested:     March 14, 2017 

Issue Summary Statement:      

1. Direct billing of tenants for water/ sewer fees 
2. Use of liens in lieu of turning off services for non-payment 

This item was referred from the Utility Advisory Board at their January 11, 2017 meeting (minutes 
can be read here: UAB Jan 11, 2017 Minutes 

The Sewer Ordinance, Chapter 16 can be viewed here: Sewer Ordinance 

Section 16.17(e) stipulates: The Department of Public Works in collecting and treating wastewater, 
doing work, or furnishing materials shall deal with only the customer and the premises, and such 
customer shall keep the Business Office advised of the address to which bills, notices, and 
communications may be forwarded. Although the payment for service may be assumed by an agent 
or tenant, the owner of the premises will be held personally responsible for the same… 

The water Ordinance, Chapter 17 can be viewed here: Water Ordinance 

Section 17.19(e) stipulates: The Department of Public Works in supplying water, doing work, or 
furnishing material shall deal with only the customer and the premises, and such customer shall 
keep the Business Office advised of the address to which bills, notices, and communications may be 
forwarded. Although the payment for service rate may be assumed by an agent or tenant, the 
customer of the premises will be held personally responsible for the same … 

Recommended Action:     None. 

7

http://www.rochesternh.net/utility-advisory-board
http://www.rochesternh.net/sites/rochesternh/files/minutes/uab20170111min_0.pdf
http://www.ecode360.com/attachment/RO2619/RO2619-016.pdf
http://www.ecode360.com/attachment/RO2619/RO2619-017.pdf


FINANCE COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item 
 
 
 

Agenda Item Name:     POLICE DEPARTMENT OVERTIME 

Date Submitted:     January 24, 2017 

Name of Person Submitting Item:     Police Chief Toussaint 

E-mail Address:     Police Department Website 

Meeting Date Requested:     March 14, 2017 

Issue Summary Statement:      

Police Chief Toussaint seeks to inform & update the Council regarding the challenges facing 
the Police Department overtime pay budget for both fiscal year 2017 as well as fiscal year 
2018. These relate to staffing shortages due to vacant positions as well as training for new 
hires. 

The summary below is as of March 8, 2017 for fiscal year 2017: 

 

The detailed spreadsheet can be viewed here: PD OT and Comp Rpt 3/8/2017 

Recommended Action:     None. 

8

http://www.rochesternh.net/police-department
https://dl.dropboxusercontent.com/u/63293323/PD%20comp%20time%20%20OT%20FY17%20pay%20week%2018.xlsx


FINANCE COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item 
 
 
 

Agenda Item Name:     CAPITAL PROJECTS/ BONDING 

Date Submitted:     March 7, 2017 

Name of Person Submitting Item:     Mayor McCarley 

E-mail Address:     http://www.rochesternh.net/users/cmccarley/contact  

Meeting Date Requested:     March 14, 2017 

Issue Summary Statement:      

At the March 7, 29017 Regular City Council Meeting, the Mayor raised the issue of funding 
for capital projects. The Council then discussed funding for the Creteau Center, Public 
Works Facility and other capital projects. 

The Mayor added this item to the Finance Committee agenda.  

 

Recommended Action:     None. 

9

http://www.rochesternh.net/users/cmccarley/contact


FINANCE COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item 
 
 
 

Agenda Item Name:     FIREWORKS DISCUSSION 

Date Submitted:     March 7, 2017 

Name of Person Submitting Item:     Mayor McCarley 

E-mail Address:     http://www.rochesternh.net/users/cmccarley/contact  

Meeting Date Requested:     March 14, 2017 

Issue Summary Statement:      

At the March 7, 29017 Regular City Council Meeting, the Mayor raised the issue of a City 
sponsored fireworks event. The Mayor added this to the Finance Committee agenda for 
discussion. 

In response, Recreation Director Bowlen submitted the following information: 
Notes from phone conversation with one of the well-known vendors - 
• Recommended purchase of display for a community of our size trying to re-establish a 
Fireworks display is around $15k to 18k. Certainly no less than $15k. 
o Comparison (illustrative only) - Portsmouth $25k to $30k, Nashua $23k, Manchester $25k 
• Timing and Schedule 
o July 3rd (Monday night) is already tight, but may have space in schedule. Would 
have to confirm as uncertain at this moment. 
o July 4th is out. 
o July 5th (Wednesday) would be rain date. 
• Has done these shows here in the past when Jaycees used to put on. 
General Discussion topics developed internally 
• Timing is a concern given scope of event. 
o Other department involvement; FD, PD, Codes, DPW, Admin/Legal, Frisbee 
Hospital, and others 
• Fire Dept. would have to be "on board". 
• Overall role of the city needs to be determined and what agency would be the lead. 
• Liability is not only with the display, but the ancillary activities such as; parking, crowd 
control, severe weather, vendor licensing, volunteers, staff availability, etc. 

10

http://www.rochesternh.net/users/cmccarley/contact


• Life Safety Protocols; evacuation for weather or other emergency events. 
• Procurement process. How does this get handled, through a bid? Primex indicates that 
this needs to be a professional company with an outstanding track record. 
 

Recommended Action:     None. 

11



FINANCE COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item 
 
 
 

Agenda Item Name:     CHIEF ASSESSOR 

Date Submitted:     February 21, 2017 

Name of Person Submitting Item:     City Manager Fitzpatrick 

E-mail Address:     http://www.rochesternh.net/users/dfitzpatrick/contact 

Meeting Date Requested:     March 14, 2017 

Issue Summary Statement:     The Finance Committee has previously reviewed the salary 
surveys as well as the re-grading of the salary for the Chief Assessor position. As was 
previously reported, a salary survey of comparable Chief Assessor positions revealed: 

 

12

http://www.rochesternh.net/users/dfitzpatrick/contact


Note: Nashua & Hanover, shown at the bottom of the data above, were removed as outliers. 

Rochester’s current salary range is significantly below the average. As a comparison to the 
City’s existing positions, the Chief Assessor would need to be moved from a Grade 11 up 
to a Grade 15 to become comparable to other communities: 

 

The position has been graded using the system adopted as part of the Merit Plan and the 
City Manager has determined a pay grade of 15 is appropriate. 

Note: An adjustment to the Chief Assessor salary does not need to go to the Personnel 
Advisory Board or the City Council since this is an existing position. 

The City Manager now contemplates moving ahead with discussions with the Rochester 
Municipal Managers Group (RMMG) collective bargaining unit to formalize the amended 
salary range for the Chief Assessor position within the collective bargaining agreement 
(CBA).  

Recommended Action:    None. 

13



FINANCE COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item 
 
 
 

Agenda Item Name:     CHIEF INFORMATION OFFICER POSITION 

Date Submitted:     February 21, 2017 

Name of Person Submitting Item:     City Manager Fitzpatrick 

E-mail Address:     http://www.rochesternh.net/users/dfitzpatrick/contact 

Meeting Date Requested:     March 14, 2017 

Issue Summary Statement:      

The City Manager recommends a change to the Merit Plan with the creation of the position 
of Chief Information Officer. 

The attached position description and resultant graded pay range of 16 has been reviewed 
and approved by the Personnel Advisory Board. 

Recommended Action:      

Amendment to the Merit Plan to add the position of Chief Information Officer. 

Excerpt from February 14, 2017 Finance Committee Packet: 

A Chief Information Officer (CIO) job description has been drafted. A copy can be viewed 

here: CIO Position Description. Municipal Resources has provided two reports on CIO salary 

data. These can be found at these two links: Report #1 and Report #2. The City’s Human 

Resources Manager has also applied the Merit Plan grading system and the results were: 

Position rating of 582 points, pay grade 16 (551-600 points). The salary range would be 

$80,136 to $108,136. In the next month, this position will be submitted to the Personnel 

Advisory Board, City Manager and City Council for review and approval. 

14

http://www.rochesternh.net/users/dfitzpatrick/contact
https://dl.dropboxusercontent.com/u/63293323/CIO-jobdescription%20Draft%202017-02-07.docx
https://dl.dropboxusercontent.com/u/63293323/MRI%20CIO%20Salary%20Data%20-%20MRI.xlsx
https://dl.dropboxusercontent.com/u/63293323/MRI%20CIO%20Salary%20Data%202%20-%20MRI.xlsx


Personnel Advisory Board 
February 21, 2017  4:00PM 
City Hall Conference Room 

 
 
Members present:      
Joanne Sylvain  
David Stevens  
 
Members absent: 
David Dubois   
   
Others Present: 
Diane Hoyt, Human Resource Manager 
Blaine Cox, Deputy City Manager 
Terence O’Rourke, City Attorney 
Dan Fitzpatrick, City Manager 
 
Review of new/amended classifications 

1. Chief Information Officer (CIO); David Stevens moved to recommend pay grade 
16.  Joanne Sylvain seconded the motion.  The motion carried by a unanimous 
vote. 

2. Deputy City Attorney; David Stevens moved to recommend pay grade 15.  
Joanne Sylvain seconded the motion.  The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 

3. Fire Chief; David Stevens moved to add position to the merit plan at the 
recommended pay grade 18.  Joanne Sylvain seconded the motion.  The motion 
carried by a unanimous vote. 

4. Administrative Services & Utility Billing Supervisor; David Stevens moved to 
remove the position from the merit plan.  Joanne Sylvain seconded the motion.  
The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 

 
Meeting adjourned at 4:30 PM. 
 
 
 

15

blaine.cox
Highlight



Grade Position Title

1 Library Page

2 No positions in this grade.

3 Custodian (part-time)

4 Legal Assistant I

5 Lead Custodian (inactive position)

6 Legal Assistant II

6 Victim/Witness Advocate

7 Financial Analyst (inactive position)

7 Payroll/Human Resource Specialist

8 Executive Secretary

9 Accountant I

9 Executive Assistant

9 GIS/Asset Management Technician

10 Senior Executive Assistant

10 Administrative Services & Utility Billing Supervisor

10 Deputy Assessor (inactive position)

11 DPW Operations Manager (inactive position)

11 Assistant City Engineer

12 No positions in this grade.

13 Lieutenant Prosecutor

13 Police Lieutenant

13 Police Prosecuting Attorney 

14 Human Resource Manager

14 Deputy Finance Director/Deputy Treasurer

14 Police Captain

15 Deputy City Attorney

16 Chief Information Officer (CIO)

16 Deputy Police Chief

17 Director of Finance (inactive position)

18 Fire Chief

18 Chief of Police

18 City Attorney

18 Deputy City Manager - Community Development (inactive)

18 Deputy City Manager - Finance & Administration

18 Director of City Services

19 No positions in this grade

Classification Schedule

2/23/2017

Classification Schedule (non-union) February 2017 draft.xlsx3
16

blaine.cox
Line



Non-Union Pay Plan
Full and Part-time regular employees

Grade Min Max Min Max

1 10.14  13.63      21,086.21    28,349.24    

2 13.18  17.70      27,412.07    36,826.32    

3 14.23  19.13      29,605.89    39,786.91    

4 15.37  20.65      31,970.10    42,960.49    

5 16.60  22.31      34,526.00    46,410.96    

6 17.93  24.12      37,294.90    50,159.62    

7 19.36  26.03      40,276.79    54,142.57    

8 20.91  28.10      43,492.97    58,445.00    

9 22.58  30.33      46,964.74    63,088.23    

10 24.38  32.76      50,713.40    68,136.14    

11 26.33  35.38      54,760.24    73,588.74    

12 28.44  38.22      59,147.88    79,488.61    

13 30.71  41.26      63,876.30    85,814.48    

14 33.17  44.56      68,988.11    92,694.12    

15 35.82  48.14      74,504.60    100,127.54  

16 38.69  51.99      80,467.35    108,136.04  

17 41.78  56.16      86,900.74    116,804.81  

18 45.12  60.62      93,844.28    126,091.26  

19 48.69  65.47      101,341.59  136,187.08  

FY17 FY17 Annual

2/23/2017

Classification Schedule (non-union) February 2017 draft.xlsx4
17

blaine.cox
Line



FINANCE COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item 
 
 
 

Agenda Item Name:     INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY CAPITAL UPGRADES 

Date Submitted:     March 9, 2017 

Name of Person Submitting Item:     Deputy City Manager Cox 

E-mail Address:     blaine.cox@rochesternh.net 

Meeting Date Requested:     March 14, 2017 

Issue Summary Statement:      

1. Capital Upgrades Using Already Appropriated Funds – the “Proposed Phase 1” 
upgrades in the chart below have been selected as the most critical and effective use of 
the funds that the Council has already appropriated. 

2. Capital Upgrades Proposed for FY2018 – the following “Proposed Phase 2” upgrades 
have been selected as the follow-on upgrades to be funded from additional funding to 
be requested. 

Project Summary - Recommended Option Total 
Proposed Phase 1   

Fiber Quote - Comm-tract $13,579.37 
Network Switches - HP $173,413.16 
Firewall - Palo Alto $81,127.00 

Network Management $54,744.87 
Total Estimate Phase 1 $322,864.40 
Proposed Phase 2 Total 
Voice Network - Cisco $213,910.30 
Data Center - Cisco HyperFlex 4 Node $273,727.84 
Wireless - HP/Aruba $69,434.25 
Total Estimate Phase 2 $557,072.39 
Total Estimate Phase 1 & Phase 2 $879,936.79 

18



The Phase 1 work has already begun with the installation of the fiber cabling which started 
Wednesday, March 8th and will be followed closely by the  replacement of the exiting 
network switches. The firewall and network management will occur before the end of 
April.  

3. Outright Purchase versus Leasing – the option to lease the items detailed in Phase 2 (as 
opposed to outright purchase) is being explored. The aspects of the two types of leases 
(capital lease with a $1 buyout and a fair-market-value lease) are possibly a better option 
than outright purchase due to the relatively quick obsolescence of technology. 

Recommended Action:     None. 

19



FINANCE COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item 
 
 
 

Agenda Item Name:     CITY PROSECUTOR/ DEPUTY CITY ATTORNEY 

Date Submitted:     February 21, 2017 

Name of Person Submitting Item:     City Manager Fitzpatrick 

E-mail Address:     http://www.rochesternh.net/users/dfitzpatrick/contact 

Meeting Date Requested:     March 14, 2017 

Issue Summary Statement:      

The City Manager recommends a change to the Merit Plan with the creation of the position 
of City Prosecutor/ Deputy City Attorney. This new position would be filled by the current 
Police Prosecution Attorney (Note: this is not an addition of personnel as the Police 
Prosecution Attorney position would be left vacant).  

The attached position description and resultant graded pay range of 15 has been reviewed 
and approved by the Personnel Advisory Board. 

Recommended Action:      

Amendment to the Merit Plan to add the position of City Prosecutor/ City Prosecutor/ 
Deputy City Attorney. 

20

http://www.rochesternh.net/users/dfitzpatrick/contact
blaine.cox
Typewritten Text
E

blaine.cox
Typewritten Text
EE



  
 
 

City of Rochester, N. H. 
Deputy City Attorney/Grade 15 

Adopted (xxxxx) 
Page 1 of 5 

 

DEPUTY CITY ATTORNEY 
 

Statement of Duties 
 
Position primarily performs highly responsible professional, administrative and supervisory work 
in planning, organizing and directing the activities of the Prosecutors office of the Rochester 
Legal  Department, in the preparation and presentation of criminal and civil ordinance violation 
cases in District  Court; assists the city Attorney in providing legal services to the City Council, 
the Council's various standing and Ad hoc committees, boards and commissions of the City, the 
City Manager and department heads. 
 
Supervision 
 
Incumbent works under the administrative direction of the City Attorney, rendering legal 
services to all City Departments. Incumbent establishes objectives, own performance 
standards and assumes direct accountability for the Prosecutor's Office; consults with City 
Attorney regarding clarification, interpretation, or exception to municipal policy. Incumbent 
assists the City Attorney in resolving department and City-wide conflicts and coordinates with 
others as necessary. 
 
Incumbent is responsible for the supervision of Prosecutor's Office employees; responsible for the 
evaluation of employees and recommends hiring, firing, and discipline of employees to the City 
Attorney. 
 
Job Environment 
 
Work is generally performed under typical office and court room conditions.    May be required 
to work outside of normal business hours. 
 
Operates a computer and general office equipment. 
 
Position requires frequent contact with the public, responding to inquiries in writing, orally 
and in person. On a daily basis, this position involves constant contact with departments of 
the municipal government as well as outside organizations. 
 
Has access to extensive confidential information, such as personnel records, criminal 
investigation records, law suits, collective bargaining negotiations and personal information 
about citizens. 
 
Errors could have legal and/or financial repercussions, cause confusion and delay of service, and 
result in adverse public relations. 
 
 
 

21

blaine.cox
Typewritten Text
CITY PROSECUTOR/



  
 
 

City of Rochester, N. H. 
Deputy City Attorney/Grade 15 

Adopted (xxxxx) 
Page 3 of 5 

 

Essential Functions 
 
The essential functions or duties listed below are intended only as illustrations of the various 
types of work that may be performed.  The omission of specific statements of duties does not 
exclude them from the position if the work is similar, related, or a logical assignment to the 
position. 
 
Prosecution of all Rochester Police Department (RPD) cases in the Rochester District Court 
including felonies, misdemeanors, violations and juvenile matters. 
 
Appear in Rochester District Court for all RPD proceedings including but not limited to trials, 
plea and sentence hearings, motion hearings, arraignments, bail review or revocation hearings, 
probable cause hearings and juvenile and delinquency proceedings. 
 
May appear before the New Hampshire Department of Motor Vehicles for Administrative 
License Suspension hearings representing the RPD. 
 
Appear before the Grand Jury when necessary for presentation of any RPD cases. 
 
Review of all investigation materials in each criminal case to ensure that all witnesses have been 
interviewed, all evidence and documents have been collected and documented, and all necessary 
certified motor vehicle and criminal records have been obtained. 
 
Ensure that all necessary witnesses are properly notified and available to appear at all scheduled 
court proceedings and that all the necessary evidence is available for the hearing. 
 
Ensure that all criminal complaints are properly drafted and reviewed prior to being filed with 
the Court. 
 
Answer all requests for discovery made by defense counsel in all matters. 
 
Research, prepare, draft, file and argue any and all pretrial motions, objections, and 
memorandums of law necessary to any case. 
 
Upon final disposition of any case, notify all interested parties of the disposition.  If any case is 
to be disposed of by a negotiated plea, the attorney will, prior to disposition, solicit the views and 
recommendation of the Department and the victim. 
 
Provide any and all other necessary support, both written and oral, to assist members of the 
Rochester Police Department in the preparation and prosecution of all criminal matters. 
 
Available for 24 hour on-call assistance for legal advice in all criminal investigations. 
 

22



  
 
 

City of Rochester, N. H. 
Deputy City Attorney/Grade 15 

Adopted (xxxxx) 
Page 4 of 5 

 

Assistance shall upon request be provided to the Code Enforcement Office regarding violations 
and enforcement of land use issues. 
 
Refers all civil suit matters to the Department’s General Counsel, or to the City Attorney and 
may assist in preparing any defense. 
 
Responsible for completing performance evaluations of assigned support and clerical personnel. 
Represent the City in all matters in which the City has an interest coming before any court, 
tribunal, quasi-judicial or legislative body, as directed by the City Attorney. 
 
Render all legal opinions insofar as practicable, as may be required of him/her in writing, and 
maintain record of same. 
 
Commence and prosecute all actions and suits to be commenced by the City or any of its officers 
in his official capacity before any tribunal whether in law or equity as directed by the City 
Attorney. 
 
Appear, when directed by the City Attorney, before the Legislature of the State or before any 
committee thereof, whether for either or both branches of the same, and there, on behalf of 
the City, represent, answer for, and defend and advocate the interests and welfare of the 
City. 
 
Pay over to the City Manager all monies received from adverse parties, when the City shall 
recover the same. 
 
Perform related duties as may be required by the City Attorney. 
 
Other duties as may be assigned. 
 
Recommended Minimum Qualifications 
 
 Education and Experience 
 

Must be a bar-certified attorney and a member in good standing of the NH Bar 
Association.  Two to five years of experience in criminal prosecution or a combination of 
experience in related fields which demonstrates possession of the required knowledge, 
skills and abilities. 

 
 Special Requirements 

 
Member of the New Hampshire Bar Association 

 Possess a valid  Motor Vehicle Operator’s License 
  
  

23



  
 
 

City of Rochester, N. H. 
Deputy City Attorney/Grade 15 

Adopted (xxxxx) 
Page 5 of 5 

 

Knowledge, Ability and Skill 
 
A candidate for this position should have thorough knowledge of the local, state and federal 
laws which govern municipal operations; knowledge of legal research materials and other 
resources; the ability to provide consistent and timely responses to requests for legal assistance; 
skills in maintaining effective working relationships with customers, other personnel, superiors, 
subordinates and other offices and agencies; strong skills in the preparation and forceful 
presentation of legal opinion, written and verbal, and advocacy on behalf of the City; and strong 
negotiation skills and tact. 
 
Physical and Mental Requirements 
 
Minimal physical effort generally required in performing duties often under typical office 
conditions.  Position requires the ability to operate computer keyboard and standard office 
equipment at efficient speed.  The employee is frequently required to use hands to finger, handle 
or feel objects, tools, or controls and to reach with hands and arms.  May be required to lift 
and/or carry up to 30 pounds.  The employee is frequently required to sit, talk, listen and hear.  
Specific vision requirements include close color vision, distance vision, and the ability to adjust 
focus.   
 
This job description does not constitute an employment agreement between the employer and 
employee, and is subject to change by the employer, as the needs of the employer and 
requirements of the job change. 
 

24



Grade Position Title

1 Library Page

2 No positions in this grade.

3 Custodian (part-time)

4 Legal Assistant I

5 Lead Custodian (inactive position)

6 Legal Assistant II

6 Victim/Witness Advocate

7 Financial Analyst (inactive position)

7 Payroll/Human Resource Specialist

8 Executive Secretary

9 Accountant I

9 Executive Assistant

9 GIS/Asset Management Technician

10 Senior Executive Assistant

10 Administrative Services & Utility Billing Supervisor

10 Deputy Assessor (inactive position)

11 DPW Operations Manager (inactive position)

11 Assistant City Engineer

12 No positions in this grade.

13 Lieutenant Prosecutor

13 Police Lieutenant

13 Police Prosecuting Attorney 

14 Human Resource Manager

14 Deputy Finance Director/Deputy Treasurer

14 Police Captain

15 Deputy City Attorney

16 Chief Information Officer (CIO)

16 Deputy Police Chief

17 Director of Finance (inactive position)

18 Fire Chief

18 Chief of Police

18 City Attorney

18 Deputy City Manager - Community Development (inactive)

18 Deputy City Manager - Finance & Administration

18 Director of City Services

19 No positions in this grade

Classification Schedule

2/23/2017

Classification Schedule (non-union) February 2017 draft.xlsx3
25

blaine.cox
Line

blaine.cox
Line

blaine.cox
Typewritten Text
/ City Prosecutor



Non-Union Pay Plan
Full and Part-time regular employees

Grade Min Max Min Max

1 10.14  13.63      21,086.21    28,349.24    

2 13.18  17.70      27,412.07    36,826.32    

3 14.23  19.13      29,605.89    39,786.91    

4 15.37  20.65      31,970.10    42,960.49    

5 16.60  22.31      34,526.00    46,410.96    

6 17.93  24.12      37,294.90    50,159.62    

7 19.36  26.03      40,276.79    54,142.57    

8 20.91  28.10      43,492.97    58,445.00    

9 22.58  30.33      46,964.74    63,088.23    

10 24.38  32.76      50,713.40    68,136.14    

11 26.33  35.38      54,760.24    73,588.74    

12 28.44  38.22      59,147.88    79,488.61    

13 30.71  41.26      63,876.30    85,814.48    

14 33.17  44.56      68,988.11    92,694.12    

15 35.82  48.14      74,504.60    100,127.54  

16 38.69  51.99      80,467.35    108,136.04  

17 41.78  56.16      86,900.74    116,804.81  

18 45.12  60.62      93,844.28    126,091.26  

19 48.69  65.47      101,341.59  136,187.08  

FY17 FY17 Annual

2/23/2017

Classification Schedule (non-union) February 2017 draft.xlsx4
26

blaine.cox
Line

blaine.cox
Line



Personnel Advisory Board 
February 21, 2017  4:00PM 
City Hall Conference Room 

 
 
Members present:      
Joanne Sylvain  
David Stevens  
 
Members absent: 
David Dubois   
   
Others Present: 
Diane Hoyt, Human Resource Manager 
Blaine Cox, Deputy City Manager 
Terence O’Rourke, City Attorney 
Dan Fitzpatrick, City Manager 
 
Review of new/amended classifications 

1. Chief Information Officer (CIO); David Stevens moved to recommend pay grade 
16.  Joanne Sylvain seconded the motion.  The motion carried by a unanimous 
vote. 

2. Deputy City Attorney; David Stevens moved to recommend pay grade 15.  
Joanne Sylvain seconded the motion.  The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 

3. Fire Chief; David Stevens moved to add position to the merit plan at the 
recommended pay grade 18.  Joanne Sylvain seconded the motion.  The motion 
carried by a unanimous vote. 

4. Administrative Services & Utility Billing Supervisor; David Stevens moved to 
remove the position from the merit plan.  Joanne Sylvain seconded the motion.  
The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 

 
Meeting adjourned at 4:30 PM. 
 
 
 

27

blaine.cox
Highlight



FINANCE COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item 
 
 
 

Agenda Item Name:     NON-UNION WAGE RANGES ADJUSTMENT 

Date Submitted:     March 7, 2017 

Name of Person Submitting Item:     Deputy City Manager Cox 

E-mail Address:     blaine.cox@rochesternh.net 

Meeting Date Requested:     March 14, 2017 

Issue Summary Statement:      

Several of the City’s labor Collective Bargaining Agreements stipulate for the automatic 
annual adjustment of the wage ranges (minimum and maximum wage levels) to adjust 
annually according to changes in the Consumer Price Index. This adjustment is not 
automatic for the non-unionized personnel regulated by the Merit Plan. The Council in 
March of 2015 approved such an annual adjustment for fiscal year 2017. 

To clarify, this action simply adjusts the minimum wage for new hires and the maximum 
possible wage for those at the top of the wage scale. It does not constitute an “across the 
board” increase or a “cost of living adjustment” for all non-union personnel. Any/ all 
adjustments for specific employees remain merit based. 

Recommended Action:      

Recommend adjustment of non-union personnel wage ranges under the Merit Plan 
according to the CPI for fiscal year 2018.  

28

mailto:blaine.cox@rochesternh.net


FINANCE COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item 
 
 
 

Agenda Item Name:     INDEPENDENT AUDITOR CONTRACT 

Date Submitted:     March 5, 2017 

Name of Person Submitting Item:     Deputy City Manager Cox 

E-mail Address:     blaine.cox@rochesternh.net 

Meeting Date Requested:     March 14, 2017 

Issue Summary Statement:      

In August of 2014, the City carried out a Request for Proposals (RFP) process for the provision of 

Independent Audit Services. At that time, the City had been served for many years (10+) by 

Vachon-Clukay. As a result of the RFP process, the City awarded a 3-year contract (FY’s 2014, 

2015 & 2016) to Melanson-Heath. The Finance Office is seeking approval from the Council to 

negotiate an extension to the contract with Melanson-Heath for an additional two years. 

 

 

Recommended Action:      

Authorize the Deputy City Manager to negotiate a two-year contract extension with 

Melanson-Heath for the provision of Independent Audit services. 

29



FINANCE COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item  
 
   
 
 

Agenda Item Name:  Monthly Financial Statements Summary – as of February 28, 2017. 

For the full detail report, click here: Detailed Monthly Financial Report as of February 28, 2017 

 

Revenues Summary – General Fund, Enterprise  Funds 

 

 

Note: Water and Sewer Fund Revenues Collected appear to fall short by one quarter each fiscal year until 
final quarterly billings are posted in September of the following fiscal year. 

 

 30

https://dl.dropboxusercontent.com/u/63293323/February-17%20Financials-Detailed.pdf


Expenditures – General Fund, Enterprise Funds 

 
31


	Agenda
	3.1 Attraction Signage
	3.2 Official Announcements and Posting Policy
	4.1 Water & Sewer Billing Process
	4.2 Police Overtime
	4.3 Capital Projects/ Bonding
	4.4 Fireworks
	5.1 Chief Assessor
	5.2 Chief Information Officer
	5.3 Information Technology Capital Upgrades
	5.4 City Prosecutor Deputy City Attorney
	5.5 Non-Union Wage Ranges Adjustment
	5.6 Auditor Contract Extension
	6 Monthly Financial Statements



